
Annual Licensing  
Committee

Date:      Wednesday, 8 June 2016
Time:      2.00 pm
Venue:   Brunel House. 

Distribution:
Councillors: P Abraham, B Clark, C Davies, H Clough, H Jama, M Khan, R Eddy, S Pearce, Fi Hance, 
C Windows, M Langley, Brenda Massey, P O'Rourke and L Whittle

Copies to: Nick Carter, Pauline Powell, Jonathan Martin, Allison Taylor

Issued by: Allison Taylor, Democratic Services
Floor 4, Brunel House (Clifton Wing), Bristol BS1 5UY
Tel: 0117 92 22237
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Tuesday, 31 May 2016

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Licensing  Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information 

2. Apologies for Absence. 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors.  They are asked to 
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular 
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4. Annual Business Report 
To approve Annual Business Arrangements for 2016/17. (Pages 4 - 16)

a) Membership

b) Appointment of Chair

c) Appointment of Vice-Chair

d) Terms of Reference

e) Dates and Times of Meetings

f) Establishment of Special Purposes Sub-Committee

g) Establishment of other Sub-Committees

h) Delegations to Sub-Committees and Officers

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
To agree the minutes of :-

10 June 2015;
14 April 2016;
20 April 2016;
22 April 2016.

(Pages 17 - 34)



Licensing  Committee – Agenda

6. Public Forum 

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Thursday 2 June 2016.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 7 June 
2016.

7. Announcements from the Chair 

8. Statement of Licensing Policy 
Oral report from Service Manager, Regulatory Services.

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Name of Meeting – Report

Annual Licensing Committee

8 June 2016.

Report of: Interim Service Director – Legal & Democratic Services.

Title: Annual Business Report 2016/17.

Ward: N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Allison Taylor, Democratic Services

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 92 22237

Recommendation

See Recommendations as set out in each paragraph.

Summary

To agree the Annual Business for Municipal Year 2016/17.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Name of Meeting – Report

A. Membership of Committee.

- To note the following members appointed by Full Council to serve on the Committee:-

Councillor Abraham;
Councillor Clark;
Councillor Clough;
Councillor C Davies;
Councillor Eddy;
Councillor Hance;
Councillor Jama;
Councillor Khan;
Councillor Langley;
Councillor Massey;
Councillor O’Rourke;
Councillor Pearce;
Councillor Windows
Councillor Whittle.
Vacancy

B. Election of Vice-Chair – Municipal Year 2016/17.

- To elect the Chair of the Committee for the Municipal Year 2016/17.

C. Election of Vice - Chair – Municipal Year 2016/17.

- To elect the Vice - Chair of the Committee for the Municipal Year 2016/17.

D. Terms of Reference.

- As set out in Appendices A & B.

E. Dates and Times of Meetings.

- To note that meetings of the Licensing Committee and its Sub Committees will be held two 
weekly throughout the forthcoming municipal year. The scheduled dates of the Sub-
Committees are printed in the Council diary all commencing at 10am. 

F. Establishment of Special Purposes-Sub Committee.

- In accordance with Licensing committee Procedure Rule (LCR) 1(iii) the annual meeting needs 
to establish a special purposes sub committee comprising the Chair of the Licensing 

committee, its Vice chair and one other committee member.  Its terms of reference must 

Page 5



Name of Meeting – Report

enable it to deal with any matters of business which would ordinarily be referred to the next 
ordinary meeting of the committee but which are, in the opinion of the Licensing Manager (in 
consultation with the Chair) of such urgency that they cannot await the date of the next ordinary 
meeting.

Recommended.
- That the Licensing committee establish a Licensing (Special Purposes) Sub-

Committee with the terms of reference set out in Appendix B;
- that the membership of the special purposes sub-committee comprise the Chair, 

the Vice Chair and one other member;
- that the committee appoint from amongst its number, one other member to 

serve on the sub-committee.

G. Establishment of other Sub-Committees.

LCR1(iv) requires that the annual meeting establish any other sub committees considered 
necessary and in respect of each of them 

(a) agree the membership;
(b) agree the terms of reference.

In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 sub committees may be established but they must
comprise no more and no less than three members each.

At its meeting on 9 February 2005 the Licensing Committee established Licensing (Hearings
sub committees comprising any three members of the Licensing committee.  That meeting
appointed each member of the Licensing Committee to serve on any such sub committee (of
three) which is convened so as to include him/her in its membership.  

It is recommended that this year the Licensing committee continue with this approach. 

The recommended terms of reference are set out in Appendix B.

 Recommended

(a) that the Licensing committee establish Licensing (Hearings) sub committees 
comprising any three members of the Licensing committee and that each member 
of the licensing committee be appointed to serve on any such sub committee 
which is convened so as to include him or her in its membership; and

(b) that each of the sub committees so established shall have the terms of reference 
as set out in Appendix A

Page 6



Name of Meeting – Report

H. Delegations to Sub-Committtees and Officers.

Section 10 of the Licensing Act 2003 allows the Licensing committee to arrange for the 
discharge of any functions exercised by it –

a) by a sub committee established by it, or
b) subject to certain statutory limitations, by an officer of the licensing authority

Section 10 of the Licensing Act 2003 also applies to certain Gambling Act 2005 functions 
that fall within this Committee’s terms of reference, that is, those gambling functions 
that are referred to in paragraph 3 of the Committee’s terms of reference.

In previous years the Committee conferred delegated power on each of the sub 
committees it established to discharge all functions falling within their terms of 
reference (which for the avoidance of doubt includes all matters ancillary thereto).  It is 
recommend the annual meeting do the same in respect of any sub committees it 
decides to establish having considered this report.

The functions referred to in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the committee’s terms of reference 
are governed by different law as far as the ability to delegate the decision making 
process is concerned.  Those matters are delegated to the Committee by the full council 
in exercise of its powers of delegation under section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972.  Under that section the Committee itself enjoys the power to delegate those 
matters to one or more of its sub committees and/or to an officer of the council.

It is anticipated that some applications made under the paragraph 2 and 4 functions 
may prompt the right to be heard. Therefore, whilst it is anticipated that most decisions 
connected with the discharge of these functions will fall to be made by a delegated 
officer, provision has been made in the recommended Terms of Reference of the 
hearings sub committees for applications to be referred to such a sub committee by a 
delegated officer. This particular provision also enables applications under the Licensing 
or Gambling Act to be decided by a sub committee notwithstanding the law does not 
absolutely require this (e.g. because there are no representations).  Whilst it is not 
expected this will often be utilised it does enable matters to be given a public airing 
where that is judged to be reasonable and appropriate.

Officer delegations 
In accordance with LCR1 the annual meeting should review the delegations to officers.  The 

Committee’s responsibilities have greatly expanded since its first annual meeting and this 
report recommends comprehensive delegations to sub committees and officers covering 
the vast majority of the Committee’s responsibilities whilst continuing to ensure that:

i. Officers are not authorised to make any decision which by law may only be 
made by Members meeting as a Committee or duly authorized sub 
committee; and

Page 7



Name of Meeting – Report

ii. The delegations reflect the policy of Bristol city Council with regard to the 
decision whether certain representations are to be disregarded by virtue of 
being judged to be frivolous or vexations

Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005
In the discharge of its licensing functions the committee must have regard to the 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State or the Gambling Commission (as appropriate) 
and to the Council's own adopted statements of policy.  The recommendations in such 
national guidance reflect the fact that there are many decisions which the law simply 
does not allow an officer to take.  For example an officer cannot determine an 
application for a premises licence under either Act where relevant representations have 
been made.
The Council's published statements of licensing policy recommend that the Licensing 
Committee follow the delegations recommended in national guidance but that, for the 
reasons set out in the Council’s policy statements, the committee should depart from 
that guidance in respect of decisions about whether or not representations are 
frivolous or vexatious.  

In previous years the committee has effected its delegations in accordance with the 
Council's adopted statement of licensing policy and it is recommended that this practice 
should continue for Gambling Act functions as well as for the Licensing Act functions.  
This is covered in recommendation 1 below.

In respect of the functions referred to in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the Committee’s Terms 
of Reference the Committee will know that the full council has itself effected 
delegations to the relevant Director in Part 3 of its constitution.  The Committee is 
informed that the relevant Directors have, in line with what is recommended in that 
constitution, made arrangements under which appropriate subordinate officers assist 
them in the discharge of these tasks on behalf of the Council as a whole.  It is 
recommended that the Committee note and approve these arrangements.

It is therefore recommended that:

1. In respect of the functions referred to in paragraphs 1 and 3 of its Terms of Reference 
the Committee makes the following arrangements:
Subject to the limitations set out in (a) and (b) below officers occupying the following 
posts:-

Regulatory Services Manager
Licensing & Trading Standards Manager
Licensing Team Leader
Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer
Senior Enforcement Officer
Licensing Officer
Enforcement Officer
Senior Enforcement Officer
Trading Standards Officer
Trading Standards Officer

Page 8



Name of Meeting – Report

Principal Trading Standards Officer
Accredited Financial Investigator
Principal Trading Standards Officer
Senior Trading Standards Officer
Trading Standards Officer
Trading Standards Investigator
Financial Investigator

Fair Trading Officer
Senior Environmental Health Officer (Regulatory  Services)
Environmental Health Officer (Regulatory  Services)
Principal Environmental Health Officer (Regulatory  Services)
Assistant Environmental Health Officer (Regulatory  Services)
Senior Pollution Control Officer
Pollution Control Officer
Public Health Services Manager

are authorised to discharge any function which in law may be discharged by an 
officer of the licensing authority.

Limitations
(a) The power to decide whether representations are frivolous or vexatious may 
only be made in respect of applications that officers would be empowered to 
proceed to determine themselves should it be decided that the representation 
under consideration is either frivolous or vexatious.

(b) An Officer may not decide whether to grant or refuse an application under 
the Licensing Act 2003 for a personal license in any case where there are unspent 
convictions.

- In respect of the functions referred to in paragraphs 2 (a) and (b), 4(a) – (f) and 
4(g) to (i) inclusive of the Committee’s Terms of Reference the committee notes 
the arrangements made by the full council and the delegated Director under 
which his subordinate officers assist him in discharging functions on behalf of 
the Council.  The Committee approves the continuation of such arrangements as 
if they had been made directly and particularly by this committee

- For the avoidance of doubt the Service Director -  Legal Services and officers 
within his team who assist him in this task shall continue to be authorised to 
institute and defend legal proceedings of any kind falling within this 
Committee’s terms of reference.

-
The possession of delegated powers shall not prevent a delegated officer bringing a matter 
before an appropriate body of Members but this should only be done following 
consultation with the Chair of the Licensing committee.

Page 9



Name of Meeting – Report

RECOMMENDED:

1. That all sub committees established by the Licensing Committee shall have delegated 
authority to discharge all functions falling within their terms of reference;

2. That the Committee approves delegations to officers as recommended in paragraph I of 
this report; and 

3. that for the avoidance of doubt any authority conferred upon a sub committee or an 
officer in connection with the discharge of any function includes the power to do 
anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge 
of the function concerned.

Contact Officer: Allison Taylor, 
Democratic Services Team
Telephone: (0117) 922 2237

Page 10



Name of Meeting – Report

Public Sector Equality Duties

8a) Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker 
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected 
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the 
need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under 
the Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, 
to the need to --

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic;

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled 
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' 
disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –

- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

Legal and Resource Implications

Legal
Not applicable

Financial
(a) Revenue
Not applicable

(b) Capital
Not applicable

Page 11



Name of Meeting – Report

Land
Not applicable

Personnel
Not applicable

Appendices:
Appendix A – Terms of Reference - Licensing Committee.
Appendix B – Terms of Reference – Licensing Sub-Committees.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

None.

Page 12



Name of Meeting – Report

Terms of Reference – Licensing Committee. Appendix  A

Overview

Functions relating to licensing and gambling as set out below.

Licensing Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”)

1. All those matters relating to the discharge of licensing functions that are referred to the 
committee by virtue of section 7(1) of the 2003 Act;

2. Other functions which full Council has arranged for the Licensing Committee to discharge, 
namely:

a) Power to grant permission for provision etc of services, amenities, recreation and 
refreshment facilities on the highway and related powers (sections 115E, 115F & 115K of 
the Highways Act 1980); 

b) Power to make an order identifying a place as a designated public place for the purposes of 
police powers in relation to alcohol consumption (section 13(2) of the Criminal Justice and 
Police Act 2001 (c.16));

c) Power to make or revoke an order designating a locality as an alcohol disorder zone 
(Section 16 Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006);

d) The Council’s functions under the third schedule to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended); and

e) Powers to make and cancel closure notices; make applications for closure orders; issue 
certificates of termination of closure orders; defend applications for the discharge of 
closure orders; appeal against the refusal to make closure orders; enforce closure orders; 
and prosecute for obstruction of authorised officers or for offences in connection with 
closure orders (sections 19 to 28) of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001);

Page 13



Name of Meeting – Report

Gambling Act 2005 (“the 2005 Act”)

3. All of those functions under Part 8 of the 2005 Act that are delegated to the Committee by 
virtue of section 154 of the 2005 Act;

4. Other gambling functions which the full Council has arranged for the Licensing Committee to 
discharge, namely: 

a)     Duty to comply with requirements to provide information to the Gambling Commission 
(s.29 of the 2005 Act);

b) Functions relating to exchange of information (s.30 of the 2005 Act);

c) Functions relating to occasional use notices (s.39 of the 2005 Act);

d) Power to designate officer of a licensing authority as an Authorised Person for a 
purpose relating to premises (section 304 of the 2005 Act);

e) Power to make order disapplying section 279 or 282(1) of the Act in relation to 
specified premises (s. 284 of the 2005 Act);

f) Power to exchange information (section 350 of the 2005 Act);

g) Power to institute criminal proceedings (section 346 of the 2005 Act);

(h) Functions relating to the determination of fees for premises licences (the Gambling 
(Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (S.I. 2007/479));

(i) Functions relating to the registration and regulation of small society lotteries (Part 5 of 
Sch 11 to the 2005 Act);

Page 14



Name of Meeting – Report

TERMS OF REFERENCE - Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committees Appendix  B

Any three members of the Licensing committee may constitute a Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee 
having the following terms of reference:

To discharge the following functions:-
Under the Licensing Act 2003:

1.        Determination of application for premises licence where representations have been made;

2. Determination of application for provisional statement where presentations have been made;

3. Determination of application for variation of premises licence where representations have 
been made;

4. Determination of application to vary designated premises supervisor following police 
objections;

5. Determination of application for transfer of premises licence following police objections;

6. Consideration of police objection made to interim authority notice;

7. Determination of application for club premises certificate where representations have been 
made;

8. Determination of application to vary club premises certificate where representations have 

been made;

9. Decision to give counter-notice following police objection to temporary event notice;

10. Determination of application for grant of personal licence following police objections;

11. Determination of application for renewal of personal licence following police objections;

12. Revocation of personal licence where convictions come to light after grant etc;

13. Determination of application for review of premises licence in a case where relevant 
representations (within the meaning of Section 52 (7) of the Act) have been made;

14. Determination of application for review of club premises certificate in a case where relevant 
representations (within the meaning of Section 88 (7)) have been made;

Page 15



Name of Meeting – Report

15. Review following closure order in a case where relevant representations have been made;

16. Determination of application for grant of personal licence where unspent convictions;
and the following Gambling Act functions:

17. Determination of application for premises licence where representations have been made;
18. Determination of application for variation of a premises licence where representations have 

been made;
19. Determination of application for to transfer a premises licence following representations by the 

Commission;
20. Determination of an application for a provisional statement in respect of which representations 

have been made
and generally:

21.   Determination of an application of any type falling within the terms of reference of the 
Licensing Committee that has been referred by a delegated officer for consideration by the Committee

 
Licensing (Special Purposes) Sub-Committee 

The Licensing (Special Purposes) Sub-Committee shall have the following terms of reference:-

To discharge the following functions on behalf of the Licensing Authority:-

1. Any matter of business which would ordinarily be referred to an ordinary meeting of the full 
Licensing Committee but which is judged by the Licensing Manager (in consultation with the 
Committee Chair) to be of such urgency that a decision cannot await the next ordinary meeting 
of the Licensing Committee;

2. To discharge any other licensing function as authorised by the Licensing Committee from time 
to time.

Page 16



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
http://www.bristol.gov.uk

Agenda Item No:
Bristol City Council
Minutes of Licensing Annual General Meeting
Wednesday 10th June 2015 at 2.00pm
________________________________________________

Members Present:-
Councillor Abraham, Councillor Budd, Councillor Clark, Councillor Fodor, Councillor Telford,  
Councillor Wollacott, Councillor Hance, Councillor Jama, Councillor Khan, Councillor Payne, 
Councillor Pearce.

Officers in Attendance:- Pauline Powell, Nick Carter, Allison Taylor

1. Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest.

Apologies were received from Councillors Windows, Davies and Morris.

There were no declarations of interest.

2. Annual Business

A) Membership of the Committee

RESOLVED - that the membership for the 2015/16 Municipal Year be 
noted as follows:-

Councillor Abraham;
Councillor Budd;
Councillor Clark;
Councillor Davies;
Councillor Fodor;
Councillor Telford;
Councillor Wollacott;
Councillor Hance;
Councillor Jama;
Councillor Khan;

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/


Councillor D Morris;
Councillor Payne;
Councillor Pearce;
Councillor Windows.

2B. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR.

Councillor Jama was nominated and seconded for the Chair
 of the Licensing Committee for the 2015/16 municipal year. There
 were no further nominations.

RESOLVED - that Councillor Jama be elected Chair of the Licensing 
Committee for the 2015/16 municipal year.

2C. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR.

Councillor Abraham was nominated and seconded for the Vice-
Chair of Licensing Committee for the 2015/16 municipal year.
There were no further nominations.

RESOLVED - that Councillor Abraham be elected Vice-Chair of the 
Licensing Committee for the 2015/16 municipal year.

2D. TERMS OF REFERENCE

RESOLVED - that the terms of reference of the Licensing 
Committee for the 2015/16 municipal year be noted.

2E. DATES AND TIMES OF MEETINGS.

RESOLVED - that the dates and times be noted.

2F. Establishment of Special Purposes Sub-Committee.

The Committee noted that this Sub-Committee was able to deal with 
matters that would normally be considered at a Full Committee but which 
needed to be dealt with urgently.

RESOLVED - (1)  that a Special Purposes Sub- Committee be 
established with the terms of reference as set out in 
Appendix A to the report.

Page 18



(2) that Councillor Hance be the third member to sit on 
the sub-Committee.

2G. Establishment of Other Sub-Committees.

RESOLVED - (1) that the Licensing Committee establish Licensing 
(Hearings) Sub-Committees comprising any three 
members of the Licensing Committee and that each 
member of the Licensing Committee be appointed to 
serve on any such Sub-Committee which is convened 
so as to include him or her in its membership; and

(2) that each of the Sub-Committees so established shall 
have the terms of reference as set out in Appendix A.

2H. Delegations to Sub-Committees and Officers.

The Committee noted an amendment to one of the posts with delegated 
powers. It should read ‘Licensing Enforcement Officer’ and not ‘Senior 
Enforcement Officer’.

RESOLVED - (1) that all Sub-Committees established by the Licensing 
Committee shall have delegated authority to 
discharge all functions falling within their terms of 
reference;

(2) That the Committee approves delegations to officers 
as recommended in paragraph 1 of this report; and

(3) that for the avoidance of doubt any authority 
conferred upon a Sub-Committee or an officer in 
connection with the discharge of any function 
includes the power to do anything which is calculated 
to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the 
discharge of the function concerned.

3. Public Forum.

There was none.

4A. Minutes of the Annual Licensing Committee 19 June 2014.

RESOLVED – These minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
          the Chair.

Page 19



4B. Minutes of the Licensing (Special-Purposes) Sub-Committee 6 November 2014.

RESOLVED - These minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
          the Chair.

4C. Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee 7 April 2015.

RESOLVED - These minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
          the Chair.

4D. Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee 9 April 2015.

RESOLVED - These minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
          the Chair.

4E. Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee 10 April 2015.

RESOLVED - These minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
          the Chair.

5. Announcements from the Chair.

There were none.

6. Licensing Policy Statement.

The Regulatory Services Manager reported that there were three policies relating to 
licensing matters – Licensing Act functions, Gambling Act functions and Sexual 
Entertainment Venues. An 18 month review of the Licensing Policy had attracted 29 
responses to consultation. The key interest appeared to be the local dynamics of the 
CIA. The refreshed policy, which also took into account changes in legislation and 
statutory guidance, would be reported to Full Council on 21 July 2015. The policy 
would come into effect 31 days later and would be in place for 5 years. A new 
Gambling policy would be in place by January 2016.

7.  Review of Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) Policy.

The current policy was set in 2011 with the work being undertaken through a 
member/officer working group. The policy was a framework for dealing with SEVs 
and allowed applications to be refused in a locality if numbers there were already 
appropriate. There were originally five licensed premises and this was reduced to 
three through the SEV policy being applied at Committee. This policy had now been 
in place for 4 years and there had been some interest in reviewing it. A statement 
had been made to the Special Purposes Sub-Committee on this matter and there had 
been a number of petitions.  The report recommended a review of the policy and 
that the review considered the suitability of standard conditions being imposed on 
every licence granted. The review would have regard to the outcome of 

Page 20



The following comments arose:-

 A Councillor endorsed the need to review the policy and proposed that other 
Local Authorities policies should be considered as part of the review;

 A Councillor supported a review but urged caution with respect to the 
content of the review. He proposed that the Committee agree a review in 
principle and ask for a report setting out review content which the 
Committee would consider and decide how to go forward;

 The Regulatory Services Manager responded that a report would set out the 
key issues regarding locality and numbers as this had been the primary issue 
that had occupied court decisions. Lobbyist’s view was that the numbers 
should be set at zero. The Committee’s Legal Advisor added that a review of 
the policy would look at guidelines for all grounds and not just numbers. 
Focussing on numbers would create difficulties and she therefore advised 
that the Committee should focus on grounds. A member/officer working 
group would ensure all issues were anticipated;

 A Councillor stated that the Committee needed to be sure that the policy was 
in line with what could be sustained. He added that there would be interest 
from various groups as soon as a review was publicised so it was important to 
be clear what we were proposing and that the policy reflected what was 
agreed;

 The Committee’s Legal Advisor observed that the Committee had a breadth 
of discretion so wide that whatever decision it made would be defendable;

 The Chair proposed that officers produce a two-page report overview of the 
remit of the Committee relating to SEVs and this be circulated as an 
Information Briefing. This was agreed.

RESOLVED – 

1. That the City Council’s policy for the control of sex establishments should 
be reviewed having regard to the outcome of a public consultation exercise;

2. That consideration be given to the suitability of the standard conditions 
generally imposed on every licence that was granted or renewed; and

3. That the Director of Neighbourhoods circulate an Information Report 
overviewing the remit of the Committee relating to SEVs.

END: 3pm

(Chair)

Page 21



Page 22



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members Present:-
Councillors Budd, Payne, Windows.

Officers in Attendance:-
Pauline Powell – Legal Advisor,  Abigail Holman – Licensing Policy Advisor, Allison Taylor – Democratic 
Services.

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

These were made.

2. Apologies for Absence

None received.

3. Declarations of Interest

None were received.

6. Public Forum

None received.

7. Urgent Business.

The Sub-Committee’s Licensing Policy Advisor asked the Sub-Committee to consider whether they 
were minded to accept two late objections received the previous day, and in doing so to hear from the 
applicant in this regard.

The applicant’s legal representative stated that the application had been properly advertised and site 
notices displayed but he did not wish to make a big issue of this.

The Sub-Committee noted the application had been properly made but were minded to accept the 
late objections. These were duly made available to the Sub-Committee and to the applicant.

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-
Committee
14th April 2016 at 12.30pm

Page 23



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

The Sub-Committee’s Legal Advisor stated that objectors had no statutory right to be heard but the 
Sub-Committee had discretion on this matter and had previously allowed this. The Sub-Committee 
agreed to hear from the one objector who was present.

Objector 1 addressed the Sub-Committee. 

The Sub-Committee’s Licensing Policy Advisor reported the receipt of urgent information from the 
Police of a confidential nature and asked the Sub-Committee if it was minded to accept the report in a 
closed session of this meeting.

The Sub-Committee agreed to receive the report.

8. Exclusion of Press and Public

Resolved:- That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) 7 (respectively) of Part 1 of schedule 
12A of the Act.

The Sub-Committee heard from the Police and the applicant. After questions and clarifications, the 
Sub-Committee resolved to return to open session.

Resolved – that the press and public be readmitted to the meeting.

9. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Application For The Renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence made by Temptations T3 Ltd in respect of premises trading as 
Temptations T3, 46 West Street, Bristol, BS2 0BH.(agenda item no.5)

The Sub-Committee noted that the licence had been transferred to Select Money Tree.

It was reported that the Sub-Committee had visited the site that morning and had questions for the 
applicant arising from that visit. These were made as follows:-

 The first point of supervision was one metre inside, at the main desk;
 It was confirmed that the main dance floor could not be seen from the booth made available 

for those with accessibility requirements;
 A refurbishment of the inside and painting of the outside of the premises was planned;
 The showers in the performer’s changing area did not work;
 The code for access to the performers’ changing area was posted on a board and was visible to 

customers. This was because some dancer’s, particularly if new to the premises, forgot the 
code. The Sub-Committee observed there was no point to a security code if available to the 
public. The applicant acknowledged this point.

Page 24



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

The Chair asked the applicant’s legal representative to address the Sub-Committee and the following 
points arose:-

 The application was made in identical terms from last year’s application;
 The premises had previously been with another operator but licence had been transferred. This 

transfer had been advertised in the paper and on site and the Police were consulted. No 
objections to the transfer were received;

 The theme of objections was of consistent breaches but the new operator had only been in 
place since December 2015 and there had been no breaches or prosecutions since then;

 Some issues were identified as a result of an enforcement visit and these were all addressed. 
He emphasised that the operator was reactive to addressing issues and was receptive to 
interventions and enforcement;

 Suitability – the transfer of the licence had been granted and the Police had not objected to the 
operator’s suitability. The owner was experienced and had operated an SEV premises in 
London and was well aware of the differences from a ‘normal’ licenced premises;

 Locality – there had been no great change. The nearby pub and shop had now closed. This was 
not felt to be grounds for refusal last year;

 Premises – there was limited signage outside and the windows were blacked out. The premises 
did not trade during periods of busy footfall ie. they were open late at night and in the early 
hours of the morning. There was robust CCTV footage and regular enforcement visits;

 There were no mandatory grounds for refusal in this case;
 With respect to discretionary grounds for refusal – the operator had relevant experience and 

no criminal convictions. The infrastructure was in place to deal with all necessary matters. The 
operator engaged constructively with the Council and relevant regulators;

 The Licensing Committee had previously resolved to allow 1 SEV in the Old Market locality and 
this was the renewal application for that 1 SEV premises;

 There were no bus stops or taxi ranks nearby. Clientele tended to come in ones or twos. The 
licence was for long hours but in reality it operated late at night only. The doors were self-
closing and musical activity was not loud or near the door;

 The outside of the premises would be painted. The building was very plain and did not impact 
on the area. The layout was designed for CCTV. There were two facilities for smokers. There 
were changing rooms, wash facilities and toilets for performers;

 In conclusion, the licence could be renewed on the same terms as the previous renewal.

The Sub-Committee sought clarification regarding the curtain poles which were still in place at the 
booths despite the curtains being removed. The applicant noted this and agreed this would be 
addressed when refurbishment took place. 

There were no further questions so all parties withdrew for the Sub-Committee to deliberate.

Resolved:- that the renewal of the Sexual Entertainment Licence for Temptations T3 be granted for 
12 months from the expiry of the last licence and be subject to original conditions of the licence and 
the following two additional conditions:-

Page 25



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

1. If the company, any officer of the company, or any person concerned with the management of the 
premises (for the avoidance of doubt this includes the manager, relief/deputy Manager and 
Designated Premises Supervisor for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003) being charged with any 
recordable criminal offence, the licence holder shall inform the Licensing Authority as soon as is 
reasonably practicable and in any event within three working days.

2. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the Digi lock code, which permits access to the staff 
area be changed immediately and the code be kept secure and in particular not be accessible to 
customers or other persons not permitted access. In the event of the code being disclosed or any 
suspicion that the code has been disclosed to a party not authorised to possess it, the code shall be 
changed immediately.

The meeting finished at 2.30pm.

CHAIR  __________________

Page 26



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members Present:-
Councillors Davies, Telford, Windows (Chair).

Officers in Attendance:-
Pauline Powell – Legal Adviso,  Abigail Holman – Licensing Policy Advisor, 
Louise deCordova – Democratic Services.

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

These were made.

2. Apologies for Absence

None received.

3. Declarations of Interest

None were received.

6. Public Forum

None received.

7. Urgent Business.

The Sub-Committee’s Licensing Policy Advisor asked the Sub-Committee to consider whether they 
were minded to accept two late objections received the previous day, and in doing so to hear from the 
applicant in this regard.

The applicant’s legal representative did not object.

The Sub-Committee noted the application had been properly made but were minded to accept the 
late objections. These were duly made available to the Sub-Committee and to the applicant.

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee
20th April 2016 at 12.30pm

Page 27



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

The Sub-Committee’s Legal Advisor stated that objectors had no statutory right to be heard but the 
Sub-Committee had discretion on this matter and had previously allowed this. The Sub-Committee 
agreed to hear from the two objectors who were present (identified as No.2 and No.4).

Objector No.2 addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of Bristol Womens Voice and Objector No.4 
addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of Bristol Fawcett. 

8. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Application For The Renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence made by Reedbed Ltd in respect of premises trading as Central 
Chambers, 9-11 St. Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE. (agenda item no.5)

The Sub-Committee noted that there had been no objections received from the Police.

It was reported that the Sub-Committee had visited the site that morning and had questions for the 
applicant arising from that visit. These were made as follows:-

 What activities take place in the raised area;
 Use of the entrance
 Use of the fire exit
 Code to staff area, and CCTV
 Query regarding door supervisors
 It was confirmed that the ladder above the bar area was previously used as access to a DJ 

booth, but this was no longer in use by the establishment.
 Derelict office access and control
 Security process for breaches of establishment rules
 Fire exit use in the location of the door railings 
 It was confirmed that there was no knowledge of the ownership or use of the blue building 

adjacent to the establishment, and accessed via a door to the left of the entrance

The Chair asked the applicant’s legal representative to address the Sub-Committee and the following 
points arose:-

 The application was made in identical terms last year’s application;
 This was the operators fourth time before a Licencing Sub-Committee having had 3 previous 

consecutive licences granted.
 Regulatory Objections – no objections had been received from the Police, Environmental 

Health, Licensing Authority, Residential or Business neighbours, or tourism or regeneration 
organisations which spoke to the longstanding suitability of the operation of the business and 
the operator in the current location, trading without regulatory concern. 

 Wider Objections – It was understood and lap-dancing clubs were not universally agreed with 
and that Fawcett was a national organisation against lap dancing.

 The club had been licenced under previous regimes since 2001 and adapted to the various 
legislative regimes that followed.  Licenced capacity was 150 but this was not used, as once the 
premises started to feel full, further customers would be turned away. There had been no 
change in location or change in the family owner-manager-operator.  The Hale family.  The 

Page 28



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

premises manager Carrie Hale was a qualified security professional and worked at the premises 
full-time, responsible for daily operation, supervision and security surveillance. 

 Business Description – there was no signage outside the premises. Hours of operation 9pm-
6am with, last entrance licenced at 4am. The club usually wound down by 5am. Patrons were 
greeted by security staff and the rules explained at the door.  I.e. No touching, mobile phones 
switched off and private dances would incur a separate payment. If a patron looked under 21 
then ID was checked.  25% or more custom was from female patrons who did not pay an 
entrance fee. Alcohol was purposely not cheap and the intoxication level was low.  Dancing in 
the main area was topless but not fully nude.  Customers were not pressured into taking a 
private dance but there were two options payment.  £20 for a dance or chips which could be 
purchased in advance by card.  Customer was required to sit with their back against the wall 
and hands by their sides.  The dance would involve a fully nude strip tease for either 3 minutes 
or for the length of 1 track. 

 Compliance – Role of the manager to observe the private dance area via CCTV to ensure that 
rules were complied with.  In addition regular checks were made by staff and security 
professionals.  Police and Licensing could check CCTV for the past 30 days at any time.

 Ejections – any breach of rules would involve a stepped process where the dancer would advise 
the patron of the rules.  If rules not complied with then security called and customer asked to 
leave the premises.  

 Fire Exits – near railings staff enter through the fire exit door prior to opening. 
 Derelict Office access and control – Belongs to landlord and no access to the operator, 

understood previously used as a storage office.
 Hearsay harassment of dancers – stated that the hearsay was untrue, evidenced by no 

corroboratory evidence being received by police or regulatory authorities. Smokers outside the 
premises were very few. 

 Statistics – the 2009/2010 statistics are not supported by police
 Suitability – applicant highly compliant, rules prominent on walls of club, no suggestion of 

breaches to character, layout and condition of premises.
 Location – no objections from any statutory body, or from anyone living nearby, no suggestion 

the premises was exerting a negative effect on its environment i.e. no logo, external imagery, 
or wording of a sexual nature, and low level of intoxication of patrons.

 In conclusion, the licence could be renewed on the same terms as the previous renewal.

The Sub-Committee sought clarification regarding the following:

 There was a low ejection rate due to non-compliance circa I patron per week.
 Patrons would generally stay for a maximum of 1-2 hours
 Male dancers would not generally work in the evenings but were often booked for hen parties 

and hen activities such as for life drawing or ‘butler-in-the-buff’ styled events.  Applicant 
confirmed that there was a healthy hen party trade of between 2 and 7 events per week which 
were advertised on the website. 

 All dancers were self-employed, and many had other employment.  It was possible for a dancer 
to receive no income if trade was slow on any one night but this was unlikely.  

 Clarified that dancers would normally arrive with a basic disclosure check or sign a declaration 
of no convictions before being permitted to perform as a dancer.  To date this had not resulted 
in any dancers being found to have had undeclared convictions.  The licensing policy advisor 
clarified with the applicant that any dancer found to have made a false statement would not be 

Page 29



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

permitted to continue to trade. The Legal Advisor clarified that the operator had discretion in 
deciding how to meet Condition H of the schedule for regulations prescribing standard 
conditions applicable to licences for Sexual Entertainment Venues i.e. ‘no person shall be 
employed or shall perform at the premises who has unspent convictions’. 

 For safety reasons dancers would be escorted to their own cars or book taxis at the end of their 
shifts.

 It was unknown and not likely to be known, whether the establishment was in the vicinity of a 
women’s refuge facility. The legal advisor confirmed that type of facility would generally 
remain unknown by its nature. The applicant confirmed that no complaint had been received 
from such an establishment.

There were no further questions, and all parties withdrew for the Sub-Committee to deliberate.

Resolved:- that the renewal of the Sexual Entertainment Licence for Central Chambers be granted 
for 12 months from the expiry of the last licence and be subject to the original conditions of the 
licence.

The meeting finished at 2.40pm.

CHAIR  __________________

Page 30



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members Present:-
Councillors Abraham, Budd and Davies

Officers in Attendance:-
Ashley Clark – Legal Adviser,  Abigail Holman – Licensing Policy Advisor, Jeremy Livitt – Democratic 
Services.

1. Election of Chair

Resolved – that Councillor Abraham be elected Chair for the duration of the meeting.

2. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

The Chair welcomed all parties to the hearing and requested that all parties introduce themselves.

3. Apologies for Absence

None received.

4. Declarations of Interest

None were received.

5. Public Forum

None were received.

6. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Application For The Renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence made by Nightlife Clubs Limited in respect of a premises trading as 
Urban Tiger, 4 Broad Quay, Bristol BS1 4DA.

Comments from each of the objectors were noted (1 to 16). The following objectors were in 
attendance and addressed the Sub-Committee:

Objector 3 – A Representative of the Bristol Fawcett Society
Objector 4 – A Representative of Bristol Women’s Voice
Objector 7 – A Resident of Central Bristol
Objector 13 – Dr Helen Mott

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Licensing (Hearings) Sub-
Committee
22nd April 2016 at 12.30pm

Page 31



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

It was reported that the Sub-Committee had visited the site that morning and had questions for the 
applicant arising from that visit. These were made as follows:-

Can the CCTV in the supervision area at the front of the premises be zoomed into any point?
Is the TV in the lounge area promotional or purely for watching TV (ie Match of the Day)?
How do customers get drinks at the bar?
Is the private dance area at the back on the ground floor for 1 person per booth?
Is payment made by hand and by cash or by credit card at Reception (with chips for customers 
to give to the dancers)?
Are any free booths available for use by customers? Please can the width and numbers sitting 
there be clarified?
Is there a waitress service in the Lounge area on the 1st Floor?
Do the VIP areas not allow dancers?
Are the toilets on the 1st Floor for Dancers Only?
Is the Smoking Area on the 1st Floor for dancers only?
Where are the toilets for non-dancers?
What would the total number of dancers be in the changing area at its busiest? It was 
confirmed that this would be between 15 and 20.
Was the door code kept secure?
Why were there no chairs in the additional changing area upstairs?
Why are some of the CCTV cameras in black and white and some in colour?
Were the images clear enough to be able to identify individuals?
Could the CCTV cameras be positioned differently to allow identification?

In response to a Sub-Committee member’s question, it was confirmed that there were also 
toilets on the ground floor for female customers.

The following representatives of the applicant were in attendance:

Bob Hale – Officer, Nightlife Limited
Carrie Hale – Officer, Nightlife Limited
Tracey Hall – Officer, Nightlife Limited
David Jones – Manager, Urban Tiger
James Treherne – Manager, Urban Tiger
Matthew Jones – Manager, Urban Tiger
John Morse – Solicitor Representing Urban Tiger
Philip Kolvin QC – Barrister Representing Urban Tiger

The Licensing Officer confirmed that all representations made by objectors to the renewal 
application had been served on the applicant on Monday 11th April 2016.

The Chair asked the applicant’s legal representative to address the Sub-Committee and he 
made the following points:-

 Urban Tiger had been operating for six years
 This was the third renewal of the licence
 There had been no statutory objection to the renewal of the licence

Page 32



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

 The business had been bought by the Hale family and was operated by Central 
Chambers through Reedbed. The individuals were known to Bristol City Council through 
previous applications as suitable owners for lap dancing clubs

 This was a busy operation with approximately 100 customers and a maximum of 3 
managers. There were also 4 security industry staff employed at the club and who were 
licenced (1 at the door, 1 downstairs, 1 upstairs and 1 roving throughout the 
establishment)

 All managers and security staff were connected by radios. There was a high degree of 
surveillance and control

 There is a waitress service which operated separately to the dancers
 Upon entry, a staff member would explain to a customer the rules of the establishment 

which are also repeated on the walls and also set out on the Menu
 Customers could pay cash or could use a credit card, including for the purchase of chips 

to give to the dancers
 Any customer who wished to go out of the building to smoke had their hand-stamped. 

However, they would not come into contact with dancers who were not in the 
reception or smoking area for customers. There were on average and at most 6 people 
in this area. In response to a Sub-Committee member’s question, it was confirmed that 
there were never large groups of people smoking outside the club

 The establishment operated under 2 existing CCTV conditions. Firstly, both parties must 
be identifiable from captured images. Whilst the owner was satisfied that this was the 
case, there were regular inspections by Council officers to ensure that this was the case. 
In addition, if the light level dropped below a certain lumens value, the image 
automatically turned from colour to black and white. However, the concerns arising 
from the Site Visit were noted and Licensing Officers were invited to look at the 
cameras and their quality

 Recent repositioning of the CCTV cameras prevented customers from seeing any of the 
images. There had been recent modernisation of the CCTV system in November 2013

 The Licensing Act requires that CCTV cameras are kept in good working order and that 
any extension for a replacement CCTV system is carried out in consultation with the 
Police

 The layout had been improved so that the old booths which were too narrow to allow 
adequate surveillance had been increased to ensure a higher standard;

 The back of house was not currently to the same standard as the front of the house but 
the new owners were intending to improve these. The views of the dancers will be 
taken into account during the refurbishment process – including the need for chairs in 
the additional changing area as referred to in the questions

 The code on the door is secure and was known only to the dancers and managers. In 
addition, it could be changed every 6 months as an additional security measure

 The club opened at 10pm during week days and at 9pm during the week. There were 4 
security staff in operation at weekends and 2 in operation during the week when the 
club was much quieter. As an example, there may only be between 5 to 15 people 
attending the club on any particular night during the week

Members expressed particular concern over two posters referred to in the paperwork. 
However, it was noted that these were both posters which had never been widely 
distributed and which were used under the previous ownership. It was agreed that 

Page 33



democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

these were both offensive and the existing owners gave an assurance that such 
promotional methods would never be used by them.

There were no further questions so all parties withdrew for the Sub-Committee to 
deliberate.

Resolved:- that the renewal of the Sexual Entertainment Licence for Temptations T3 
be granted for 12 months from the expiry of the last licence in September 2015 and 
be subject to a requirement for officers to inspect the CCTV at the establishment to 
ensure it complied with the necessary conditions in the licence. 

Note: The Sub-Committee noted the assurances that had been received from the 
applicant concerning the two posters referred to above and that they would be 
modernising the changing room facilities for the dancers.

The meeting finished at 2.10pm.

CHAIR  __________________

Page 34


	Agenda
	4 Annual Business Report
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	mins SEV 14.4.16
	Mins SEV 20 4 16
	Mins SEV 22.04.16


